

Learning-Aligned Employment Program (LAEP) Handbook

Table of Contents

| Overview | 3 |
|--|---|
| Quick Resources | 3 |
| Definition of Terms | 3 |
| Program Administration | 4 |
| 2022-2031 LAEP Agreement | 4 |
| LAEP Coordinator | 4 |
| Administrative Cost Allowance (ACA) | 4 |
| Academic Credit | 5 |
| Documentation | 5 |
| Student Eligibility | 5 |
| Underrepresented Background | 5 |
| Documentation – Underrepresented Background | 6 |
| First Generation College Students | 6 |
| Low-Income Students | 6 |
| Students Who are Current or Former Foster Youth | 6 |
| Homeless Students or Those at Risk of Becoming Homeless | 6 |
| Students with Disabilities | 6 |
| Displaced Workers | 6 |
| Students with Dependent Children | 6 |
| Formerly Incarcerated Students | 7 |
| Undocumented Students/Students Meeting the Requirements of Assembly Bill 54 the 2001–2002 Regular Session of the Legislature | |
| Students Who are Veterans | 7 |
| | |

| Half-Time Enrollment | 7 |
|--|----|
| Summer | 7 |
| Resident Classification | |
| Demonstrated Maintenance of Satisfactory Academic Progress | 8 |
| Demonstrated Financial Need | 8 |
| Eligibility to work in the United States | 9 |
| Status Changes | 9 |
| Prioritization | 9 |
| Student Eligibility Quick Guide | 10 |
| Student Agreement Template | 11 |
| Employer Eligibility | 12 |
| Research Centers and Institutions | 12 |
| Public Schools | 12 |
| Nonprofit and For-profit Employers | 12 |
| Employer Agreement | 13 |
| Evaluation of the LAEP Position | 14 |
| Documentation – LAEP Position | 15 |
| Relation to the Student's Area of Study | 15 |
| Capability of Connecting to Full Time Employment | |
| Job Description | 15 |
| Timesheets | 16 |
| Fiscal Management and Payments | 17 |
| Payments | 17 |
| Summer Payments | |
| Reconciliation | 19 |
| WebGrants LAEP Module and Data Reporting Procedures | 19 |
| LAEP WebGrants Access | 19 |
| Phase I and Phase II - WebGrants Screens Available | 19 |
| Student Employment Data Screen | 20 |
| ACA History | |
| Report Download | |
| Interest Tracking | 25 |
| Phase III (TBD) | |

Overview

The Learning-Aligned Employment Program (LAEP) was established in the 2021-22 California State Budget and is administered by the California Student Aid Commission (Commission), in consultation with the office of the President of the University of California (UC), the office of the Chancellor of the California State University (CSU), and the office of the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges (CCC). LAEP provides eligible underrepresented college and university students with the opportunity to earn money to help defray their educational costs, while gaining education-aligned, careerrelated experience.

The Learning-Aligned Employment Program was created pursuant to <u>California</u> <u>Education Code (CEC) sections 69950 - 69969</u>.

Participating institutions must use LAEP funds in accordance with the provisions set forth in the respective program statutes, <u>LAEP Regulations</u> and procedures, the Commission website (<u>csac.ca.gov</u>), <u>Grant Operation Memos (GOM</u>), <u>Grant Special Alerts (GSA</u>), and Learning-Aligned Employment Program Agreement (LAEPA).

This handbook was created as a collaboration between the Commission and campus workgroup members representing the UC, CSU and CCC. The Commission thanks the workgroup members for their time and contributions.

Federal and state regulations still apply to LAEP. Institutions must continue to comply with federal and state regulations, as well as institutional policies in regard to student participation in LAEP.

LAEP is a new program launching at eligible campuses in the 2022-23 academic year. This handbook offers information available at the time it was last updated. Additional information about the program will be added as it becomes available. Please contact laep@csac.ca.gov with any questions.

Quick Resources

- LAEP Website: <u>csac.ca.gov/laep</u>
 - LAEP Handbook and Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
 - List of participating institutions
 - o Recorded webinars, slide decks and program updates
 - Employer Agreement template
- LAEP Email: <u>laep@csac.ca.gov</u>

Definition of Terms

- ACA- Administrative Cost Allowance
- CADAA California Dream Act Application
- CCC California Community College
- CCCCO California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office
- **CEC** California Education Code
- Commission The California Student Aid Commission
- **CSU** California State University
- **CSUCO** California State University Chancellor's Office

- FAFSA Free Application for Federal Student Aid
- **Institution** A CCC, CSU, or UC campus that has executed a LAEPA to participate in the Program.
- LAEP The Learning-Aligned Employment Program
- LAEPA The Learning-Aligned Employment Program Agreement
- UC University of California
- UCOP University of California Office of the President

Program Administration

2022-2031 LAEP Agreement

Participating institutions submitted a 2022-31 Learning-Aligned Employment Program Agreement (LAEPA) to participate. LAEP funds allocated to institutions are available for encumbrance and expenditure by participating campuses until June 30, 2031.

Per CEC 69969(d)(2)(B), commencing no later than the 2022–23 fiscal year, participating institutions are expected to enable participating eligible students to access available learning-aligned employment opportunities.

Each participating institution is required, as a condition of participation in the program, to comply with auditing or other fiscal reporting requirements established by the Commission, in consultation with the office of the President of the UC, the office of the Chancellor of the CSU, and the office of the Chancellor of the CCC. These requirements are applied by the Commission to ensure that no LAEP payments are applied to the general aid or support of the institution.

LAEP Coordinator

The LAEP Coordinator is the person on campus who serves as the first point-of-contact for the program. Each participating campus has a LAEP Coordinator. The Commission contacts the LAEP Coordinator with updates and/or questions about LAEP for each campus. Please contact the LAEP team at laep@csac.ca.gov to update contact information for the LAEP Coordinator.

Administrative Cost Allowance (ACA)

The Institution may use up to 5 percent of the funds it receives under the program for its costs for administering the program.

- ACA is up to 5 percent of funds <u>received from the Commission</u>.
- ACA will not be calculated based on expended LAEP funds. The Institution is not required to spend ACA proportionately to the expended student funds.
- Unspent ACA will roll over each year.
- Institutions may not collect an additional surcharge from external employers for the administrative costs of LAEP.
- ACA can cover the institution's costs, not the employer's or the student's. The
 institution can apply ACA to costs that the institution would typically incur.
 However, costs that would typically be borne by the employer or the student may
 not be covered by ACA funds.

Academic Credit

Participating institutions are strongly encouraged to develop competency-based educational opportunities in order to grant academic credit for work performed in a LAEP position. It is the sole responsibility of each institution to designate policies and procedures in the matter of granting academic credit.

Documentation

For each LAEP position, the institution should maintain all necessary records, including, but not limited to, need analysis documents, employer agreements, financial aid award documents, time sheets, and records of payments provided to the student.

Student Eligibility Documentation - See "Student Eligibility"

Job Description Documentation – See "Evaluation of the LAEP Position"

Student Eligibility

To be eligible to participate in LAEP, the student must meet the following criteria:

- Underrepresented background
- Half-time enrollment at a minimum
- Resident classification
- Demonstrated maintenance of satisfactory academic progress
- Demonstrated financial need
- Eligibility to work in the United States

Underrepresented Background

A student from an underrepresented background satisfying all of the eligibility criteria may participate in the program. "Underrepresented" students include first generation college students, low-income students, students who are current or former foster youth, homeless students or those at risk of becoming homeless, students with disabilities, displaced workers, students with dependent children, formerly incarcerated students, undocumented students, students meeting the requirements of Assembly Bill 540 of the 2001–2002 Regular Session of the Legislature, and students who are veterans. See LAEPA Article III, Section b.

Unless otherwise indicated, further clarification of these groups may be provided as needed by the applicable office of the President of the UC, the office of the Chancellor of the CSU, the office of the Chancellor of the CCC, or the CCC District Office.

The student must match at least one of the "underrepresented background" descriptors to participate in LAEP. "Underrepresented background" applies to the student and cannot be established through a parent.

If a student participating in LAEP no longer meets the "underrepresented background" criteria by which they qualified, the institution may reevaluate and document alternate criteria that qualify the student for the program. If the student no longer meets any of the "underrepresented" criteria, the student is no longer eligible to participate in LAEP. See "Status Changes" below.

Documentation – Underrepresented Background

The institution should retain documentation of the student's eligibility for LAEP. Below are some examples of acceptable documentation for each underrepresented category.

First Generation College Students

- Self-reported designation on FAFSA or CADAA
- Self-reported designation on the admissions application
- Documentation from the campus registrar's office

Low-Income Students

- Income data on FAFSA or CADAA
- Campus student information system data Indicating Pell Grant eligibility.
 - For students who are not Pell-eligible, please refer to your institution's policies for determining low-income status.

Students Who are Current or Former Foster Youth

"Foster youth and former foster youth" means a person in California whose dependency was established or continued by a court of competent jurisdiction, including a tribal court, on or after the youth's 13th birthday and who is no older than 25 years of age at the commencement of the academic year. [CEC 66025.9(b)(1)]

- Foster Youth (FY) Designation from the Commission (verified through the California Department of Social Services)
- Verification letter from a case worker or county office (including dates)

Homeless Students or Those at Risk of Becoming Homeless

Note: a student's designation as homeless or at risk of being homeless may change at any point in the academic year.

- Self-reported designation on FAFSA or CADAA
- Professional Judgement performed by the financial aid office
- Basic Needs Office documentation
- Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Documentation

Students with Disabilities

• Documentation from campus Disability/Accessibility Resource Center

Displaced Workers

Note: "displaced worker" applies to the student and cannot be established through a parent.

- Self-reported designation on FAFSA or CADAA
- Professional Judgement performed by the financial aid office
- Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Documentation

Students with Dependent Children

• Self-reported designation on FAFSA or CADAA

- Self-reported through campus-specific form
- Students with Dependent Children (SWD) designation from the Commission

Formerly Incarcerated Students

Note: Currently incarcerated students are not eligible to participate in LAEP.

• Documentation from campus student resource center or "Project Rebound" data

Undocumented Students/Students Meeting the Requirements of Assembly Bill 540 of the 2001–2002 Regular Session of the Legislature

Note: The institution is responsible for ensuring that the student is eligible to work in the U.S. for the entirety of the term of employment.

- California Dream Act Application, affidavit
- DACA Employment Authorization Card

Students Who are Veterans

Note: "veteran" applies to the student and cannot be established through a parent.

- DD214
- Documentation from the campus registrar's office
- Documentation from the veterans' services center on campus

Half-Time Enrollment

Participating undergraduate students must be enrolled or accepted for enrollment at least half-time in courses required for completion of a degree or certificate EXCEPT during the summer term, as outlined below. Half-time enrollment is determined by the institution, in accordance with institutional financial aid policy. High school students and graduate students are not eligible to participate in LAEP.

A student enrolled in a teacher credential program is eligible to participate. The student's enrollment status for LAEP eligibility should be calculated based on the units in the teacher credential program only.

Summer

The institution may allow summer learning-aligned employment opportunities in order to provide learning-aligned employment positions for eligible students who may find it difficult to locate meaningful employment during the academic year because of a rigorous academic program that does not allow them to work during the academic year or because they are required to participate in an intensive work experience that satisfies academic requirements.

To be eligible to participate in a summer LAEP opportunity, the student must be:

- enrolled at least half-time in summer courses required for completion of a degree or certificate, or
- accepted for enrollment on at least a half-time basis for the following normal academic term.

For example, an incoming freshman or transfer student can work the summer before starting classes if they have enrolled at least half-time for the upcoming fall. An outgoing (summer) graduate cannot work the final summer of their senior year unless they are enrolled at least half-time in courses toward their degree.

When an eligible student works in a LAEP position during a summer term or break, the institution should follow their institutional policy to determine whether summer is a 'header' or 'trailer' term and establish eligibility according to that policy. Please see 'Summer Payments' in the 'Payments' section below for some summer payment scenarios.

Resident Classification

State of California residence pursuant to CEC Part 41 (CEC section 68000, et seq.) is required. Institutions are encouraged to document California residency using existing methods for verifying California residency per the office of the President of the University of California (UC), the office of the Chancellor of the California State University (CSU), and the office of the Chancellor of the California Community Colleges (CCC).

Demonstrated Maintenance of Satisfactory Academic Progress

To participate in LAEP, a student must demonstrate maintenance of satisfactory academic progress in a program leading to a degree or a certificate, as determined by the institution in which the student is enrolled, applying standards of eligibility for federal financial aid.

For purposes of this determination, homelessness, as defined as a "homeless individual" within the meaning of the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 11302(a)), or as defined as a "homeless child or youth," as defined in subsection (2) of Section 725 of the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 11434a(2)), is an extenuating circumstance for students who are unable to meet the requirements deemed to constitute "satisfactory academic progress" at that institution that may be considered by the institution to alter or excuse compliance with the progress requirements.

Demonstrated Financial Need

To participate in LAEP, a student must demonstrate financial need. Demonstrated financial need is determined by the financial aid office of the institution in which the student is enrolled, pursuant to the methodologies approved by the United States Department of Education for use in awarding funds provided under Title IV of the federal Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended. If individual circumstances affect the ability of the student or the student's family to contribute to the student's total financial resources, the financial aid administrator may make reasonable individualized adjustments to the computed total applicant resources.

LAEP earnings may not exceed a student's unmet need.

Eligibility to work in the United States

To participate in LAEP, a student must be eligible to work in the United States. Students who completed the CA Dream Act Application (CADAA) can participate in LAEP if they are eligible to work in the United States.

Status Changes

If a student's status changes affect their LAEP eligibility, the institution should reevaluate the student's eligibility following institutional procedures for other types of financial aid. Institutional procedures should be followed consistently for all students.

If the institution determines that the student is no longer eligible for the LAEP position, the institution should take action to alert the employer within a reasonable amount of time.

Prioritization

Each participating institution should prioritize the following eligible students for available learning-aligned employment opportunities under the program:

- first generation college student, or
- a current or former foster youth, or
- a student who is homeless, or at risk of being homeless

Each participating institution should further prioritize for available learning-aligned employment opportunities an eligible student meeting this priority criteria who is also majoring in a science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) discipline.

In the event that a limited amount of funding or a limited number of positions are available, the institution should give priority to any student who is a first-generation college student, a current or former foster youth, homeless, or at risk of being homeless. If, after prioritizing these students, the number of eligible students still exceeds the available funding or number of positions, the institution should give further priority to any student who is also majoring in a science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) discipline.

Student Eligibility Quick Guide

| Underrepresented | LAEP Criteria | Prioritization |
|--|--|---|
| Required for participation Student must match one or more of the descriptors to participate. first generation college students low-income students current or former foster youth homeless students or those | LAEP Criteria Required for participation Student must meet <u>all</u> of the criteria to participate. • Half-time enrollment (minimum) • Resident classification • Demonstrated | Prioritization Not required for participation but must be prioritized when applicable Student must match one or more of the descriptors to be prioritized. first generation college students current or former foster youth Homeless students or those at risk of becoming |
| nomeless students of those at risk of becoming homeless students with disabilities displaced workers students with dependent children formerly incarcerated students undocumented students students meeting the requirements of Assembly Bill 540 of the 2001–2002 Regular Session of the Legislature students who are veterans | | |

Student Agreement Template

Institutions may elect to <u>customize</u> and use the form below to document student eligibility and agreement to LAEP requirements. It is a campus responsibility to document each student's eligibility to participate in LAEP.

[Institution Name]

Learning-Aligned Employment Program (LAEP) Student Agreement

Student Name:

Employer: _____

Position Title:

The Learning-Aligned Employment Program (LAEP) offers eligible students at public colleges and universities the opportunity to earn money to help defray their educational costs while gaining education-aligned, career-related employment. By signing below, you agree to the following:

- I certify that I understand that I am required to alert the [Institution Name] Career Center and Financial Aid Office if I am no longer enrolled at least half-time in courses, or if I become otherwise ineligible to participate in LAEP. To participate, a student must continue to:
 - be enrolled at least half-time, OR in summer, be enrolled at least half-time for summer term or the following fall term
 - o be a California resident
 - \circ demonstrate financial need, as determined by the financial aid office
 - o maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP), as defined by [Institution Name]
 - be eligible to work in the United States
- Per California Education Code Section 69959(a), a student participating in LAEP shall only be placed in an educationally beneficial position that relates to the student's area of study, career objective, or the exploration of career objectives. I certify that the position listed above is educationally beneficial and relates to my area of study, my career objectives, or the exploration of my career objectives in the following way(s):

| Campus Positions Only – Research Mentor 1 | Name and Contact Information: |
|---|-------------------------------|
| Research Mentor Name: | Signature: |
| Contact (Phone and/or email): | |
| Student Signature: | Date: |

Employer Eligibility

Each participating institution should collaborate with local employers to identify learningaligned employment opportunities that are located near the institution, aligned with the areas of study offered by the institution, and aligned with an eligible student's area of study.

The institution should work to develop partnerships with employers willing to contribute resources toward a percentage share of student compensation.

All of the following entities are eligible to employ students participating in the program:

Research Centers and Institutions

Research centers and institutions operated by public postsecondary educational institutions are eligible if their learning-aligned employment opportunities provide participating students with direct opportunities to participate in the research that is undertaken by the respective research centers and institutions.

If the direct employer is the UC, CSU, CCC, or one of its respective campuses, the program may provide 100 percent of the student's compensation.

"Research" is defined by the institution and shall be a significant component of any LAEP position in which the employer is a research center or institution operated by a public postsecondary educational institution. Research is not limited to scientific research and can take place outside of an academic discipline. The research shall be directed and supervised by faculty, staff or another mentor who will determine the research requirements.

Students may work at a LAEP-eligible institution other than their school of attendance. Only employers listed in CEC 69954 are eligible to participate and compensation must comply with CEC 69962. When a student is employed by another LAEP-eligible institution, the LAEP funds of the college of attendance may pay up to 100% of the student's compensation. LAEP funds of the employing campus may not be used to pay the student.

Public Schools

Public schools operated by school districts, county superintendents of schools, the Department of the Youth Authority, or the Department of Education are eligible.

Employment opportunities shall be located at public school sites and shall not be located at any district, county, or State department offices.

For LAEP positions with public educational institutions or nonprofit corporations, the program may provide no more than 90 percent of the student's compensation.

Nonprofit and For-profit Employers

Nonsectarian, nonpolitical organizations or corporations, whether nonprofit or for-profit enterprises licensed to conduct business in the state, are eligible if they are capable of providing participating students with full-time employment opportunities, or opportunities to connect with other employers capable of providing participating students with full-time employment opportunities, within their areas of study after graduation.

For LAEP positions with <u>nonprofit</u> employers, the program may provide no more than 90 percent of the student's compensation.

For LAEP positions with <u>for-profit</u> employers, the program may provide no more than 50 percent of the student's compensation.

Employer Agreement

Once the public postsecondary educational institution has identified a learning-aligned employment position, the employer and the institution should execute a written agreement that confirms the employer's eligibility to participate in the program and its willingness to comply with all program requirements.

The agreement is subject to annual renewal by mutual agreement of the institution and the employer.

The following are recommended to be included in the Employer Agreement:

- Maximum hours allowed for LAEP students
- Maximum compensation allowed for LAEP students
- Frequency of compensation (weekly, biweekly, lump sum, etc.)
- Responsibilities of each of the parties.
- Guidelines to prevent students from working in a LAEP position during scheduled class times. Exceptions may include when an individual class is cancelled, if the instructor has excused the student from attending for a particular day, and if the student is receiving credit for employment in an internship, externship, or community work-study experience.
- Which party will pay the student directly and which will reimburse the other (if applicable).
- Annual renewal procedure for the Employer Agreement

Please see the LAEP website at <u>www.csac.ca.gov</u> for an Employer Agreement template and contact <u>laep@csac.ca.gov</u> with any questions.

Evaluation of the LAEP Position

Following execution of the Employer Agreement, the employer may interview prospective students. The institution should provide the employer and each applicant for the LAEP position with adequate information to facilitate a student's potential employment.

Both of the following priorities should be followed at the time of job referral and placement:

- A student shall only be placed in an educationally beneficial position that relates to the student's area of study, career objective, or the exploration of career objectives.
- The program shall include and emphasize placements for students with employers that are capable of providing them with full-time employment opportunities, or opportunities to connect with other employers that are capable of providing them with full-time employment opportunities, within their areas of study after graduation.

If the priorities specified above have been met, the employer may indicate the employer's hiring preferences.

An employer must not discriminate between applicants on any basis listed in subdivision (a) of Section 12940 of the Government Code, as those bases are defined in Sections 12926 and 12926.1 of the Government Code, except as otherwise provided in Section 12940 of the Government Code, or subject any applicant to any other discriminatory practices prohibited by state or federal law.

Each learning-aligned employment position identified by an institution should be reviewed by the appropriate institutional staff to determine whether it satisfies all of the following conditions:

- a. The position is educationally beneficial or related to a particular career interest or the exploration of career options.
- b. The work performed by the student is not related to the activities of any sectarian organization or to any partisan or nonpartisan political activities.
- c. The employment of a LAEP student will not displace workers currently employed by the participating employer or impair existing contracts for services.
- d. The LAEP position will not violate any applicable collective bargaining agreements or fill any vacancies due to a labor dispute.
- e. The student will be paid at a comparable rate to that paid for comparable positions within the employing organization. If the employing organization has no comparable position, the student will be paid at a rate comparable to that paid by other organizations in the field for work involving comparable duties and responsibilities. The positions will be compared on the basis of the nature of the work performed and the background and skills required for the position, and not upon the employee's part-time or student status.
- f. The number of hours of LAEP employment the student is allowed to work is determined by each institution in accordance with its standards and practices, taking into consideration the extent of the student's financial need and the potential harm of the combination of work and study hours on a student's satisfactory academic progress.

- g. The employer will provide the institution with an accurate accounting of hours worked and wages earned.
- h. The total compensation received by the student pursuant to LAEP will not exceed the total amount authorized by the institution.
- i. The employer will provide the student with reasonable supervision.
- j. LAEP funds will not supplant any state, federal, or institutional funds used to support existing paid positions for students in profit or nonprofit organizations.

Documentation – LAEP Position

Relation to the Student's Area of Study

A student shall only be placed in an educationally beneficial position that relates to the student's area of study, career objective, or the exploration of career objectives. Below are some examples of acceptable documentation:

- Self-certification from the student
- Written evaluation from institution faculty or staff

Capability of Connecting to Full Time Employment

The institution should include and emphasize placements for students with employers that are capable of providing them with full-time employment opportunities after graduation, or opportunities to connect with other employers that are capable of providing them with full-time employment opportunities after graduation, within their areas of study. Below are some examples of acceptable documentation:

- Inclusion in the Employer Agreement
- Written statement from employer
- Written evaluation from institution faculty or staff

Job Description

Each LAEP position should have a job description that includes:

- name/classification of the position (e.g., laboratory assistant, teaching assistant, library assistant etc.);
- name and address of the student's employer (the school, public agency, nonprofit organization, etc.);
- department or office in which the student will be employed;
- location where the student will perform his/her duties;
- name of the student's supervisor;
- the length of the student's employment (beginning and ending dates);
- purpose or role of the position within the organization;
- duties and responsibilities associated with the position and how they relate to the purpose or role;
- rates of pay for the position;
- general qualifications for the position and the specific qualifications for the various levels or rates of pay associated with the position;
- procedures for determining a student's rate of pay when a position has multiple rates; and

- evaluation procedures and schedules, if applicable.

Timesheets

The institution must maintain adequate timesheets or records of hours worked for LAEP students. The amounts and hours recorded must match the hours for which the student is paid. LAEP timesheets must be certified by the student's supervisor.

Fiscal Management and Payments

The Commission allocated all LAEP funds to participating institutions at the beginning of the 2022-23 academic year based on each institution's share of students receiving a federal Pell Grant in the most recent prior fiscal year for which data was available for all program participants. Each year, unused LAEP funds roll over to the following year.

Payments

A student who is employed in a LAEP position should not be compensated until the student earns that compensation by performing work. LAEP students will receive a paycheck for hours worked.

The share of LAEP funds that may be used to compensate the student depends on the type of employer (see 'Employer Eligibility'). An institution can pay the non-LAEP share from its own funds or other sources such as outside funds from an off-campus employer.

- For LAEP positions with for-profit employers, the program may provide no more than 50 percent of the student's compensation.
- For LAEP positions with public educational institutions or nonprofit corporations, the program may provide no more than 90 percent of the student's compensation.
- If the direct employer is the UC, the CSU, the CCC, or one of its respective campuses, the program may provide 100 percent of the student's compensation.

The institution or other employer may pay the student directly. The institution or employer may reimburse the other for the respective share of funds. The Employer Agreement should include the steps the institution and employer will take, the documentation the institution and employer will provide, and the time frame within which each party will pay its share of the student's compensation. The institution should have a system for ensuring that off-campus employers are invoiced for their share of LAEP wages in a timely manner (if applicable). In addition, the institution should have a system for following up if invoices remain unpaid after a reasonable period of time. The institution's accounting entries must completely track the invoicing and receipt of the employer's share (or vice-versa).

A student is entitled to compensation for hours already worked, even if the student subsequently becomes ineligible for LAEP. Regardless of who employs the student, the institution is responsible for ensuring that the student is paid for work performed.

LAEP funds paid to students may only pay student wages and may not include sick leave, vacation pay, holiday pay, fringe benefits, workers' compensation, retirement, transportation costs, or other benefits. This is true even if LAEP funds are used for 100 percent of the student's compensation.

LAEP funds may not be used to pay stipends.

Deductions from the student's earned compensation, such as taxes and union dues, may be deducted from the student's paycheck as with any other paycheck.

For purposes of determining the award of other financial aid to a Participating Student, the Institution shall consider net earnings received by the Participating Student through LAEP and not the Participating Student's gross earnings. June 2024 California Student Aid Commission Because LAEP is a need-based program, the Institution shall ensure that the Participating Student's projected earnings will not exceed the Participating Student's financial need when packaging aid. If circumstances change after the award is packaged and a Participating Student earns, or will earn, more than the Participating Student's financial need, the Institution shall take the following steps in the order listed:

- (1) The Institution shall reevaluate and adjust the Participating Student's financial aid package as applicable to ensure that the total earned does not exceed the Participating Student's financial need.
- (2) If the Participating Student's earnings still exceed the Participating Student's need by \$300 or less after the Institution has made appropriate adjustments to the financial aid award and has withheld payment of any undisbursed loan or grant (except the Pell Grant), no further action is necessary.
- (3) Institutions shall maintain documentation of the steps the institution took to adjust the financial aid award of any Participating Student whose earnings exceeded the Participating Student's financial need by up to \$300.
- (4) Participating Students cannot be required to repay wages earned. LAEP earnings can only be adjusted by reducing the hours Participating Students can work in the future, thus reducing future earnings. If the Participating Student's earnings exceed the Participating Student's need by more than \$300 after taking the steps above, the Institution must reimburse the Commission from the Institution's funds.

An institution may not credit a student's account with the student's LAEP earnings to cover institutional charges without the student's permission.

Summer Payments

The institution may allow summer learning-aligned employment opportunities in order to provide learning-aligned employment positions for eligible students who may find it difficult to locate meaningful employment during the academic year because of a rigorous academic program that does not allow them to work during the academic year or because they are required to participate in an intensive work experience that satisfies academic requirements. Please see 'Summer' in the 'Student Eligibility' section.

Institutions should follow their institutional procedures and summer term guidance to apply summer payments and to determine whether summer is a 'header' or 'trailer' term. The following three payment scenarios provide some context, using the summer of 2024 as an example:

Scenario 1 – Incoming (New) Student:

The student may be eligible to work in the summer, dependent on fall 2024 enrollment. Eligibility is based on 2024-25 Financial Aid (FA) application and 2024-25 Cost of Attendance (COA). Student's start date of employment MUST be on or after July 1.

Scenario 2 – Graduating Senior:

The student may be eligible to work in the summer, dependent on summer enrollment. Eligibility is based on 2023-24 FA application and COA. The institution's definition of the summer term will determine the student's eligible working dates. The student is not eligible to continue working beyond the institution's summer term.

Scenario 3 – Continuing Student:

The student may be eligible to work in the summer, dependent on summer or fall enrollment. Please see 'Summer' in the 'Student Eligibility' section. The institution's definition of the summer term will determine whether the student's summer eligibility and payments are applied to the 2023-24 or 2024-25 AY.

Reconciliation

The Institution agrees to annually reconcile and report to the Commission its total LAEP fund expenditures, including student compensation and administrative cost allowance, no later than September 30. (LAEPA Article II, Section I.)

Unused funds will roll over to the following year. There is no institutional penalty for unused funds.

LAEP funds are not required to be kept in an interest-bearing account. Any interest earned on LAEP funds should be applied to LAEP student wages or returned to the Commission.

The Institution agrees that LAEP payments cannot be made for work performed after June 30, 2031 and agrees to return any unused LAEP funds, including remaining interest earned, to the Commission no later than September 30, 2031. (LAEPA Article II, Section m.)

WebGrants LAEP Module and Data Reporting Procedures

Participating institutions are required to report data in WebGrants no later than September 30, following the end of each fiscal year.

LAEP WebGrants Access

Institution System Administrators (SA) will automatically have access to LAEP screens when available.

Institution Users may need the SA to add the LAEP screens to their access profile.

Institution staff without WebGrants access will need to request access from their SA.

Phase I and Phase II - WebGrants Screens Available



- Student Employment Data
- Manage ACA Data
- Report Download
- Interest Tracking

Student Employment Data Screen

Enter School ID and Academic Year to search for records.



Select Add a Student to begin a new record.

| Search Data: | | | | | | | | | | | and Date | |
|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|----------|--|
|--------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|----------|--|

Enter student's first and last name, Social Security Number/Dream Act ID, and Date of Birth.

New Student Employment Data

Close Page Instructions

×

×

- Enter Student Demographics as needed or select "Unknown".
- Enter LAEP Program Details. Select "Yes" if applicable or "No" if not applicable or unknown.
- Enter Employment Details. It is possible to enter multiple employment records for the same student.
- Click "Submit" to finish.

| Student De | atails | | | | ~ |
|-------------|--------|---|-----------------|----------------|---|
| First Name* | | | SSN* | | |
| Last Name* | | | Date of Birth * | MM/DD/YYYY | |
| Middle Name | | | Gender | Select | ~ |
| Address | | | Ethnicity | Select | ~ |
| City | | | Phone | | |
| State | Select | ~ | Email | example@domain | |
| Zip Code | | | | | |

Select whether Student is a STEM Student (Yes/No)

Select if Student is receiving Academic Credit (Default is No)

Select what qualifies the Student as Underrepresented. At least one underrepresented descriptor must be marked "Yes".

LAEP Program Details

| Institution | 00116600 - CITRUS COLLEGE | Academic Year | 2023 |
|----------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|
| STEM Student * | ⊖ Yes ⊖ No | Academic Credit | ⊖Yes |
| First Generation * | ⊖Yes () No/Unknown | Status * | |
| Former Foster | ○ Yes () No/Unknown | Low Income * | ○ Yes No/Unknown |
| Youth * | | Homeless* | ○ Yes |
| Disabilities* | ○ Yes | Veteran* | ○ Yes No/Unknown |
| Undocu / AB540* | ○ Yes | Displaced * | ○ Yes |
| Student with Dependent* | 🔿 Yes 🔘 No/Unknown | Formerly Incarcerated * | ○ Yes |

Complete Employer Details Section.

There is a pull-down option for the 4 Employer Types: Campus Employer, Public School, Nonprofit Organization, or For-Profit Organization,

Required fields are indicated with a red asterisk (*).

For all employer types, Student Gross Wage and LAEP Funds Expended must be provided.

Gross Wage = # of hours worked multiplied by hourly rate.

LAEP Funds Expended = The portion of Gross Wage that was paid with LAEP Funds (up to 100%, 90%, or 50% of Gross Wage, depending on employer type).

Select the plus (+) sign to add other Employment Details if a Student works in more than 1 position.

Employment Details

Employment 1

| Employer Type* | CAMPUS EMPLOYER | ~ |
|--------------------------|-----------------|---|
| Research Mentor | • | |
| Type of Research | | |
| Employer Partner | | |
| Gross Wage * | | |
| LAEP Funds Expended * | | |

| Employ | yment | Details |
|--------|-------|---------|
|--------|-------|---------|

Employment 1

| Employer Type * | PUBLIC SCHOOL | Ŷ |
|--------------------------|---------------|---|
| Employer Name * | - Select - | ~ |
| Employer Industry * | Select | ~ |
| Gross Wage * | | |
| LAEP Funds Expended * | | |

+ Add Other Employment Details

Employment Details

Employment 1

Employment Details

Employment 1

| Employer Type * | NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION | ~ |
|--------------------------|------------------------|---|
| Employer Name * | - Select | ~ |
| Employer Industry* | - Select - | ~ |
| Gross Wage * | | |
| LAEP Funds Expended * | | |

| Employer Type * | FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION | ~ |
|--------------------------|-------------------------|---|
| Employer Name * | Select | ~ |
| Employer Industry * | Select | ~ |
| Gross Wage * | | |
| LAEP Funds Expended * | | |

+ Add Other Employment Details

| + Add Other Employment Details |
|--------------------------------|
|--------------------------------|

ACA History

Enter School ID and Academic Year to search for records.

| HOME ADM | IN - NAVIGATION N | MENU - USER INFO | | | | * | LOGOUT |
|-------------|-------------------|------------------|--------|---|--------|---|--------|
| | 10000 | | | | - | | |
| School ID:* | School ID | Academic Year:* | Select | ~ | Search | | |
| | | | | | 3 | | |

Home > LAEP > Manage ACA Data

Select Add ACA to begin a new record.

| | ew expense, click "Ado xpense record, click th | d ACA". e eye icon in the "View" colum | n. | | | × |
|-------------------|---|---|--------------------|--------------|----------------|------|
| ACA Histor | y | | | | | |
| Add ACA | | | | | Search Data: | |
| Total Number of I | Records: 0 | | | | | |
| Total Amount: 0 | | | | | | |
| | | | Items per page: 20 | 1 - 20 of 20 | < < | > > |
| View | View Amount Description Other Description St | | | | Submitted Date | |
| | | | Items per page: 20 | 1 - 20 of 20 | 1< < | > >1 |

Add Amount and Description of each ACA expense. Please retain documentation of the expense for three (3) years following the last day of the academic year for which the payment was expended or until any outstanding audits are resolved, whichever is later.

| Add ACA Data | | × |
|---------------|---------------------------|---|
| Institution | 00116600 - CITRUS COLLEGE | |
| Academic Year | 2022 | |
| Amount * | | |
| Description * | - Select 🗸 | |
| | Submit Cancel | |

Report Download

- Report 1: Reconciliation Detail Report
- Report 2: Reconciliation Summary Report
- Report 3: Demographic Detail Report

Select School ID, Academic Year, Report Type and File Type.

| HOME ADM | IIN - NAVIGATION MENU | J → USER INFO | | | 2 | LOGOUT |
|-------------|-----------------------|--|---------------------|----------|---------------|----------------|
| School ID:* | O Text Down | Academic Year:* Selec | t - • Report Type:* | - Select | Ţ | |
| | O CSV | | | | | and the second |
| | | | | | Close Page In | Istructions |
| | | Year, Report Type and File Type, ir computer. Access the file in yo | | | | × |

Interest Tracking

Enter School ID and Academic Year.

Enter Interest Earned for the most recent calendar year. For example, for the 2023-24 academic year, enter interest earned for the 2023 calendar year (1/1/2023-12/31/2023).

| School ID:* | 00116600 | Academic Year:* | 2023 - 2024 🗸 | Search | | | |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------|----------------|------------|
| | | CALL - CAL | | | ille | | |
| Home > LA | EP > Interest Tracking | | | | | Close Page Ins | structions |
| Please | enter the amount of intere | st earned for the yea | r. If no interest wa | s earned, please ent | ter '0.' | | × |
| Interest T | Fracking | | | | | | |
| Interest Earne | :d* | | | | | | |
| Notes | | | | | | | |
| Characters en | tered: 0/200 | | Submit | Reset | | | |

Phase III (TBD)

Report 4: Demographics Summary Report

File Upload

Delete Student button on the Student Employment Data screen

Note: Additional information regarding the WebGrants LAEP module and LAEP data reporting procedures will be included in future versions of this handbook. Please contact <u>laep@csac.ca.gov</u> with any questions.

Didn't find what you were looking for? Please email the LAEP team at

laep@csac.ca.gov.